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Bellary, Deccan, Ceded, Adoni, Alur.

Bellary is made up of the eight taluks 
of Adoni, Alur, Bellary, Hadagalli, 
Harpanahalli, Hospet, Kudligi and 
Rayadurg and includes within its limits 
the little Native State of Sandur. 

Statistical particulars of the population, etc., of 
these areas will be found in the separate 

appendix to this volume. The capital 
of the district is the Cantonment 

and Municipality of Bellary, 
and the head-quarters of 

the various taluks are at 
the towns and villages 

from which they are 
respect ive ly  na-  
med. Besides these, 
the only note-wor 
thy towns are Kosgi- 
and Yemmiganuru 
in  Adoni  ta luk ,  
S i r u g u -  p p a  i n  

Bellary, Kampi in 
Hospet and Kotturu in 

Kudligi taluk.

There is no district with so few 
wells as Bellary. In the Cotton-soil 

taluks, where they would seem to be most 
wanted, the reasons given for not digging them 
are that cotton-soil does not take kindly to 
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ABSTRACT: 
ellary is the westernmost of 

1 2
the four Ceded  or Deccan  Bdistricts of  the Madras 

Presidency. It is only on its eastern 
flank that it is connected with the rest 
of the province, the other three sides 
being bounded by the Nizam’s 
Dominions (on the north) the Mysore 
State (on the south), and (on the west) by the 
Dharwar district of the Bombay Presidency. In 
Shape it is roughly triangular. Along the 
whole of its longest- the north-
western-side the great Tun- 
gabhadra river forms its 
frontier, but the b oun- 
dary on the other two 
sides of the triangle, 
south and east, has 
been formed by the 
accidents of history 
and does not follow 
any marked natural 
features. On the 
east, where Bellary 
touches the rest of 
the Presidency, it is 
flanked by the two 
districts of Kurnool and 
Anantapur. The latter of 
these formed part of it until the 
beginning of 1882 when it was 
detached and constituted a separate 
Collect orate.
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THIRRIGATION SYSTEM OF BELLARY DISTRICT IN 18  CENTURY 

irrigation; that the sub-soil water lies at a great depth and beneath the stratum of limestone which so 
often underlies the regard; that when reached it is often too brackish to be of any use; and that in the 
loose black earth the wells have to be expensively reverted to keep their sides from falling in. But these 
reasons do not apply to Harpanahalli or Hadagalli and yet the number of wells in these taluks is far 
fewer than in their neighbor Kudligi, where the conditions are very similar. During the famines of 1891-
92 and 1896-973 many wells were dug in the district with money obtained under the Land 
Improvement Loans Act, but in these two taluks (and Hospet) less was done than elsewhere. There are 
a few “supplemental wells”, mostly in the Rayadurg taluk under the Hagari and its spring channels.

Bellary possesses fewer tanks than any district except Coimbatore, there being only some 280 
of them in all. Only seven of them have an ayacut of over 500 acres; only two of them, those at 
Kamalapuram and Kanekallu, are river-fed; and many of them are greatly silted up some of the smaller 
ones having been entirely put out of action from this cause. Practically all of them were made by native 
administrations before the district was ceded to the English. The difficulties in the way of constructing 
others are that(as Munro remarked a hundred years ago) all the best sites have already been seized 
upon, and that in a country of such light rainfall a large catchment area is necessary to ensure a reliable 
supply. Statistics show that in the eight years ending with fails 1310 less than half of the existing tanks 
received an full supply. In the black soil taluks there are the additional difficulties that irrigation is not 
popular and that the tanks would quickly silt up. The area irrigated by tanks if largest in Kudligi taluk, 
where the nature of the ground lends itself to the construction of reservoirs. 

The only tanks worth separate mention are the four given in the margin. Some account of the 
first of these and of the damage it sustained in the flood of 1851 is given below in the notice of the 
village after which it is named. It is the last of a group of seven tanks. The six above it have a catchment 
area of 81 square miles, and an ayacut of 797 acres. The surplus from these run into the Narihalla which 
itself has a basin of 336 square miles, and between them they supply the Daroji tank. After discharging 
from this last the Narihalla runs on to join the Tungabhadra near Ittigi, irrigating as it goes, from seven 
small anicuts, another 950 acres.

The Dhanayakanakeri tank is also the last of a chain. The tradition regarding its builder is 
mentioned below. The three tanks above it have a catchment basin of some 30 square miles and irrigate 
354 acres. Their surplus and the drainage from an additional 18 square miles feed the Dhanayakanakeri 
tank and the surplus from this forms Gauripuram Tank which runs into the Tungabhadra near Malapur.

The Daroji tank is also the of a chain. The tradition regarding its builder is mentioned below. Its 
Catchment area is 58 square miles, and irrigates 1272 acres. The Kanekallu tank has a catchment basin 
of only 20 square miles with on tank in it, but receives a supply by channel from the Hagari. 

The only spring channels of importance in Bellary are those in Rayadurg taluk which are 
annually dug from the Hagari. They are 28 in number and the nominal ayacut under them (though it is 
not all of it always irrigated) is nearly 7000 acres. The channels silt up every year and every year they are 
cleaned out again by the ryots who benefit by them, the provisions of section 6 of Act I of 1858, under 
which any one not contributing his share of labour is fined twice its value, being strictly enforced. 
Bellary taluk also contains some similar channes from the Hagari.

There are no dams across the Hagari or the Chinna Hagari. On the Chikka Hagari there is on near 
Bachigondanahalli which irrigates about 150 acres in that village and Anandevanahalli.

TANKS:

CHANNELS:
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The only anicuts of any importance are those across the Tungabhadra. They are ten in number, 
as under. The list gives them in their order on the river, beginning with the highest. The waste water of 
the Raya and Bella canals forms the Kalaghatta channel, four miles long. From the Kampli canal 
branches the Belagoduhalu channes, 7.5 miles in length, and from the Siruguppa canal the Bogavadi 
channel, 3.5 miles long.

Bisides these ten anicuts, there are three others in ruins at Modalukatti4 in Hadagalli, Suguru in 
Bellary and Mantsala in Adoni taluk. All of these anicults and channels were constructed by the 
Vijayanagar kings some 300 or 400 years ago, and it has been stated by competent authority5 that “the 
positions for the anicuts have been chosen with great judgment and the channels have been formed 
with consummate skill”. Our Engineers have since made many improvements in them, such as 
supplying them with head sluices, devising means to check their tendency to silt, and so on. The 
tradition regarding them is that they were all built by an officer (Dhanayak) of king Krishna Devaraya 
(A.D.1509-1529) called Mudda. This Mudda, says the story, started life as herd-boy to a Brahman 
astrologer. The Brahman foretold that he would be famous, as one day he found a cobra with 
outstretched hood watching over him as ho slept in the fields.6 Mudda is said to have first built the big 
tank of Dhanayaknakeri and then the Tungabhadra channels.

The Vallabhapuram anicut was undoubtedly built in Krishna Deva’s time, for an inscription on 
the bank close by, dated 1521, says so, but nothing is definitely known about the constraction of any of 
the others and the Turuttu anicut seems.7 To have been made by Bukka II, who ruled from 1399 to 
1406.

The Vallabhapuram anicut runs straight across the river to an island and is 330 yards long. On 
the other side of the island, connecting it with the western bank, is another dam, called the Korragal 
anicut, which belongs to the Nizam. The Vallabhapuram anicut as it now appears is a reconstraction on 
improved principles of the original dam. Some of the loose stones of the latter used to be washed away 
in overy flood and constant repairs were necessary. In 1847-49, Brick in chunam being used for the 
interior of the work. The remains of the old dam are still to be seen about 50 feet upstream. 

The Ramanna anicut runs between the upper nd of the Kurudagadda island and the further 
bank of the river and was designed to drive the stream between the island and the Bellary bank so as to 
increase the supply at the durudagadda anicut. This is three miles lower down, run from the Bellary 
bank to the island, and is 250 yards in length. The Raya channel which takes off from it is the most 
important of the whole scrics. It ed in the Kamalapuram tank. “Great science and ingenuity are 
displayed in the selection of the line so that the level of this channel should be preserved above tht of 
the bed of the tank, and to effect this the line is carried along the side of a range of low hills at the 
considreablo height above the valley below. The work is in some places excavated in solid rock and in 
others it is embanked with stone, plastered with chuan and  backed with earth.”8 

The Bella anicut, Turuttu anicut, Ramasagaram anicut, Kampli anicut,9 Siruguppa anicut, 
Desanuru anicut,10 Rampuram anicut and A number of small projects for increasing irrigation in the 
district have been suggested at different times.11 The Tungabhadra project is a revival on new lines of 
previous proposals to utilize the water of this river. Largely at the suggestion of Sir Arthur Cotton, the 
original scheme of the ill-fated Madras Irrigation Company12 included, when in began work in 1859, 
two alternative cannels from the Tungabhadra to irrigate land in Bellary. They were known respectively 
as the High Level and the Low Level Lines of the Upper Bellary Project. The High Level Project consisted 
of a canal from the Vallabhapuram anicut to Bellary which was to irrigate 150,000 acres and also supply 
the town and cantonment with water. The Low Level project contemplated a canal from Hosurn to near 
Bellary and thence to the Hagari. The Irrigation Company speedily fell into difficulties and in 1866 was 
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required to agree to complete the Kurnool-Cuddapah canal, which it had already taken up, before 
dropped. Since they modifications of them have been several times examined13 and recently the 
Irrigation Commission recommended that the possibility of irrigation from the Tungabhadra should be 
reinvestigated. Mr.A.T.Mackenzie was appointed to the duty and has proposed14 that a masonry dam 
some 145 feet high and 4000 fect long should be made at Malapuram, about three miles above Hospet 
where the river cuts through the continuation of the Sandur hills. This would hold back the water for the 
distane of nearly 40 miles and form a lake with an area of 160 square miles and a capacity of about 
180000 million cubic feet of water, or four and a half times that to the Assouan reservoir. From this a 
canal would be led along the valley up which the road from Kamalapuram to Daroji now passes, through 
the Daroji hills to the foreshore of the Daroji tank by a tunnel, thence to Bellary, passing above the town, 
and thereafter across the Hagari, through the watershed between it and the Penner, and down into this 
latter river. Such a canal would Command a great part of Bellary.

1.The “Ceded districts” are Bellary, Anantapur, Cuddapah and Kurnool. They are so called because 
(except four taluks of Kurnool) they were ceded to the Company by the Nizan in 1800. 
2. “Deccan” or “Dakkhan” represents the vernacular pronunciation of the Sanskrit word Dakshina, 
meaning “Southern,” which was used to designate that portion of the Indian Peninsula which lies south  
of the Narbada river.
3.Department of Land Records and Agriculture, See No.35.
4.See Land Record.
5.Major Henderson C.B., in Report on Important Public Works for 1852.
6.The same story is recounted of many other celebrities.
7.Forgotten Empire, P.No.51,301.
8.Major Henderson’s Report abovr quated.
9.C.T.M Kottrayya- Irrigation System of Vijayanagara Empire, Hampi University, Hampi.
10.Dr.N.Ramakrushnaiah-  Historical and Cultural Study of Siruguppa Taluku. 2014. 
11.Mr.H.E.Clerk’s Preliminary Report of the Irrigation Commission, 1902.
12.The melancholy history of this venture is given in Vincent’s monograph recorded in G.O., No.455, 
Dated: 10th June 1882.
13. Mr.Clerk’s Note in the report above quoted give details.
14.See His preliminary report.
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